Earth Negotiations Bullet
. A R.ep;or.tin.g .Se-rv;ce. fo.r IIEn;/ir.on.m.en.t a.no; D.ev.elz)p.mén': N.eg;ot.iations

Vol. 6 No. 41 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) ~ Monday, 8 February 1999

THE HAGUE FORUM In Rglsodlutiodn 32/188 of 18 Decembelr 1997, thfe UN General
Assembly decided to convene a Special Session from 30 June-2
8-12 FEBRUARY 1999 July 1999 to review and appraise implementation of the ICPD
The International Forum for the Operational Review and ~ POA. The General Assembly emphasized that existing agreements
Appraisal of the Implementation of the Programme of Action ~ contained in the POA would not be renegotiated. The General
(POA,) of the International Conference on Population and Devei%%sembw designated the CPD as the preparatory body for the
ment (ICPD) will meet from 8-12 February 1999 at the Netherlarfgecial Session and the 32nd session of the CPD as the preparatot
Congress Centre in The Hague. The Hague Forum is an integratommittee. The Population Division of the UN Department of
part of a five-year review of the implementation of the ICPD PO&conomic and Social Affairs and UNFPA are collaborating and
(ICPD+5), which will culminate in a Special Session of the UN coordinating the ICPD review process leading up to the Special
General Assembly from 30 June-2 July 1999. The Forum is org&ession.
B'ﬁfci%yof,heerr?n':'e';ﬁp“'a“on Fund (UNFPA) and hosted by the - o ;N pTABLE AND TECHNICAL MEETINGS
The goals of the Hague Forum are to: examine experiences and-€2ding up to The Hague Forum, a number of meetings were
lessons learned by governments, international and regional orgé#flvened to provide inputinto ICPD+5. UNFPA organized four
zations and civil society in country-level implementation of the round-table and three technical meetings in 1998, which focused on
POA; provide technical inputs to the Special Session; and bringkeY themes in the POA. The outcomes of these meetings are
together a wide variety of partners to refocus commitment on p marized below. In addition, UNFPA and the UN Regional
lation and development. The Forum will assess country-level opePnmissions conducted five-year regional reviews on population
ational and programme experience in POA implementation,  and development: Economic and Social Commission for Asia and
focusing on five substantive themes: creation of an enabling eniﬂe.PaC'f'C!.24'27 March, Bangkok; Economic Commission for
ronment for the further implementation of the POA; reproductiva-atin America and the Caribbean, 13-14 May, Aruba; Economic
health, including family Flanning and sexual health and reprodugd Social Commission for Western Asia, 22-25 September,
tive rights; gender equality, equity and empowerment of women e|rut,.Econom|c Commission for Africa, 23-25 September, Addis
strengthening of partnerships; and resource flows and financingfjBba; and Economic Commission for Europe, 7-9 December,
PR memertaion Ripest T oucomes or ese s e dictssed
The main document of the Forum is a background paper, '
produced by UNFPA, entitled “A Five-Year Review of Progress ,, ADOLESCENT SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE
towards the Implementation of the ICPD POA.” The paper identdEALTH: This round-table meeting took place in New York from
fies further action required in the five thematic areas and synthel4-17 April to review progress in |mplement|nfg ICPD recommen-
sizes the findings from round-table and technical meetings, dations, identify constraints and propose key future actions. Partici-
conclusions from consultations organized by the UN Regional Pants noted that while early marriage and some harmful traditional
Commissions, responses to a global field inquiry conducted by Practices are diminishing, measures to prevent unwanted preg-
UNFPA in mid-1998, and progress reports on ICPD implementd@ncy and sexually transmitted diseases (STDs) among adolescent
ooy N spedleed sgerces e edate an ite s e Y e
P|er?;rr;/nzgntgﬁﬂ%?rqnénogmwrr?i?tlé’edsezlazgﬁ;ﬁg.Vg:éwggltslgggg%”se\l/vill ductive health rights are gradually being realized, more countries

address the operational review and assessment of POA imple%formulatmg policies and initiating effective programming,

; - - ; : lescent participation is gradually increasing and gender equalit
tation at the country level, and the Main Committee will conside ; ; e .
the five substantiveythemes. A report summarizing the Plenary improved. In identifying constraints, the round-table conclude
Main Committee proceedinds wiIFbe submitted by the Forum resistance to providing information and services to address
Rapporteur for adoption at the final Plenary on Friday. A separ olescents’ sexual and reproductive health needs has deterred

document outlining operational perspectives on further implem em from seeking help. Financial constraints, poverty, a lack of

tation will be formulated by the Forum Bureau, acting as a drafti icators of adolescent development, inadequate research to _
committee, and submitted to the final Plenary for adoption and |; pand knowledge of effective programmes and limited accessib-

; P ; to resources for innovative initiatives were also highlighted as
g‘frl:ésé%gé?otrﬁ] %ff |tr;]ael gagr%rr%gsti%% E%rgrgbtlh ;\{:grt\) grﬁ)ée[s)g\r)ggg%t nstraints. Actions recommended to address these constraints

(CPD) in March 1999 and wil e taken into account n the prepaigiotth SHIPPTS AT P Ere IR 2 neeehs: hepanding
tion of the Secretary-General's Report to the Special Session. sustaining yo%lth participation; elstablishifng better indicgtors of
progress; conducting more evaluation of initiatives; and encour-

A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE ICPD+5 PROCESS aging cost-sharing and innovative financing.
The ICPD was held in Cairo, Egypt from 5-13 September 1994. REPRODUCTIVE RIGHTS AND IMPLEMENTATION

An estimated 20,000 government delegates, UN representativeSF REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH PROGRAMMES,

NGOs and media representatives attended the conference, Whi?hOMEN'S EMPOWERMENT, MALE INVOLVEMENT

adopted a sixteen-chapter POA in the area of population and deaRID HUMAN RIGHTS: This round-table meeting was

opment.

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti® <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell <richcam@hotmail.com>, Angela Churie <churie@|.kth.se>
Kira Schmidt <kiras@iisd.org>, Chris Spence <spencechris@hotmail.com>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd ®idaragirth Editor is L. J
"Kimo" Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by David Fernau <david@virtualstockholm.net>. The Sustaining DonoBudittireare The Netherlands Ministry g
Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID) and the Swiss Agency for Enviforesesrand Landscape. Gengral
Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFIDmtreReeieral Ministry of Environmer
(BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the EuropeamiBo(DG-XI), the Ministries
of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministrgighffairs and Ministry of Environment
of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facilityd(tBERiaistry for the
Environment in Iceland. Specific support for coverage of The Hague Forum has been provided by UNBRAefitnean be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and
at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avéifiuelé@stVinnipeg, Manitoba R3B
0Y4, Canada. The opinions expressed irBath Negotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of ISD and other funders. Excerpt:
from theEarth Negotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to useghiis materi
commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions Biitledin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW
server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was taken above The Hague (¢)1999 The Living Earth, Inmdpeigrtiicom. For information on tEarth
Negotiations Bulletinsend e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.

=

—




Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Monday, 8 February 1999 . .o Vol. 6 No. 41 Page 2

convened in Kampala, Uganda from 22-25 June to identify straterogrammes were suggested, including promoting the use of local

gies to ensure reproductive rights and make sexual and reprodinealth facilities by older persons. The need for capacity building,

tive health programmes operational, as well as to highlight research and training was also emphasized.

successes and constraints and recommend future actions. Partici- POPULATION CHANGE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOP-

pants stressed the need for universal and balanced attention andENT: This symposium was held in Bellagio, Italy from 2-6

investment to implement family planning, ensure maternal healtiovember. Reviewing new scientific evidence, it addressed the

and reduce infant mortality and morbidity, and prevent and treateffects of fertility decline and other demographic changes on

STDs, including HIV/AIDS. They emphasized the need to reduagconomic growth, poverty and inequality. It also considered the

verticality of programmes and called for integration of all aspectgffects of population growth on sustainable resource use in agricul-

of reproductive health in the context of primary health care and ture and overall implications for economic, social and population

health sector reform. The round-table proposed action on: healplicies and programmes. Participants noted that economic growth

sector reforms to ensure equitable sexual and reproductive heahiot an end in itself but a means to the larger objectives of

reorientation of health systems to ensure that sexual and reprogproved well-being. Evidence that high fertility constrains

tive health policies, strategic plans and all aspects of implemenigconomic growth was not seen as a rationale in itself for public

tion are rights-based; health system structural reform involving interventions to reduce fertility, particularly if the means to reduce

infrastructure, human resource development and financing to _fertility compromise individual well-being and rights. It was

achieve both coverage and quality; and increased investment iremphasized that policies and interventions to improve poor fami-

structural integration of reproductive health services, training, lies’ situations are justified by evidence that high fertility exacer-

networking, empowerment of people; and creation of enabling pates poverty and that, among the poor, some portion of high

environments through participatory processes at all levels.  fertility is unwanted or unintended. Participants agreed that
INTERNATIONAL MIGRATION AND DEVELOP- undoing existing policy-induced distortions should be the highest

MENT: This technical symposium took place in The Hague fronpriority. Good economic policies were noted to contribute to

29 June-3 July, and assessed management of migration issuesfertility reduction, and fertility decline was considered more likely

facing policy makers in countries of origin and destination througihencourage economic growth if economic frameworks are sound.

enhanced international cooperation. Discussion focused on: retBemticipants supported non-coercive programmes for the poor to

migration; forced migration and responses to asylum-seekers; ¢hetease their options.

lenges to the international community posed by international REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH SERVICES IN CRISIS

migration; impacts on migration of globalization; regional SITUATIONS : At this technical meeting held in Rennes, France

economic cooperation mechanisms, poverty and environmentajrom 3-5 November, experts assessed progress in meeting the

degradation; remittances, participation of women in internationgeproductive health needs of people in crisis situations. Participants

migration; migration of skilled personnel; protection in diverse identified these needs, assessed current services, debated

settings of basic rights of workers employed abroad; and statusg@nstraints and failures, and made recommendations for future

long-term foreign residents in their host society. Participants  jmprovements. Areas examined in detail included minimum

stressed international cooperation based on an appropriate balgaegces in emergencies, sexual violence, adolescent reproductive

of the concerns of relevant parties. The international harmonizatig@lth needs, coordination of reproductive health services, infor-

of migration and asylum policies, most likely in sta%es starting agation systems, and STDs, including HIV/AIDS. The meeting

the subregional and regional levels, was seen as the appropriatgcognized that some achievements have been recorded since 199

long-term goal. Participants drew attention to the gulf between put much more work is necessary. Participants recommended

formal rights and actual treatment of migrants and to the need f@iture actions, includindnter alia: making reproductive health

conditions favoring the full participation of migrants in society. ||bart of primary health care packages in emergency situations;

conceived control mechanisms or a disproportionate focus on encouraging farget community participation; increasing efforts to

control were seen as possibly contributing to the rise in irregulasecure funding and improve human resources; establishing a

migration. The symposium stressed the need for better collectiafentral documentation center; clarifying the status and rights of

and analysis of data on various aspects of international migratigaternally displaced persons; improving coordination at all levels;
PARTNERSHIP WITH CIVIL SOCIETY: This round-table and increasing services aimed at adolescents.

meetinghwas conv?ned in thaka, Banglade%h from 27-30 July to

review the status of partnerships among civil society, government

and the internationaPcommunity, identify successes and THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

constraints and propose future actions to promote and enhance  PLENARY: The opening Plenary will begin in Prins Willem-

partnerships. Participants noted that significant progress has begexander Hall at 10:00 am. The Plenary will elect the Forum Pres-

achieved in undertaking collaborative efforts. They called on ident (expected to be Amb. Nicolaas Biegman of the Netherlands),

governments to: ado(g); measures to facilitate civil society involvéhe Main Committee Chair (expected to be Chowdhury Anwarul of

ment; strengthen and intensify social and resource mobilizationBangladesh) and the Bureau. Delegates will hear keynote speeche:

efforts and formulate advocacy strategies based on socio-cultuggd reports from the Parliamentarians’, Youth and NGO Forums,

and economic research; prioritize strengthening human resourgghich immediately preceded the Forum. At 12:00 pm, the opera-

management, technical capabilities, institutional capacities andtional review and assessment of POA implementation will

financial viability; and, with NGOs, the private sector and interngommence.

tional organizations, identify areas to promote innovative modali- pMAIN COMMITTEE: The consideration of substantive

ties for concerted action to achieve programme complementariemes will begin in a Main Committee at 3:00 pm in the Van Gogh

and synergy. _ _ _ _Hall. The focus of the first theme is “Creating an enabling environ-
POPULATION AGEING: This technical meeting was held inment for further implementation of the ICPD POA.”

Brussels from 6-9 October. Its aim was to review experiences and

policies on population ageing to identify new initiatives and key

future actions needed to meet the needs of the elderly, with a

special focus on gender and poverty issues. The experts noted that

the UN 1999 International Year of Older Persons would provide a

significant opportunity for highlighting the magnitude and urgency

of population ageing Issues. They urged that effective policies be

implemented during the next few years to avoid a potential crisis

caused by population ageing, particularly in developing countries.

The meeting concluded that governments and international organi-

zations need to exercise the necessary political will and should aim

to provide a full range of adequately funded basic services to ojga

persons. It also proposed that governments and other relevant® 71, garth Negotiations Bulletin offers its sincere condolences

groups adopt a range of forward-looking policies, such as remoflinG, the Government and people of the Hashemite Kingdom of
barriers to work that are based on age rather than ability. Variofs Jordan on the death of King Hussein.




